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PER CURI AM *

The defendants, Patricia Bedford and her daughter, Melissa
Bl al ock, appeal their convictions and sentences after a jury
convicted them on one count of conspiracy under 18 U S. C. § 371
and 14 underlying counts of failure to refund federal education
funds in violation of 20 U.S.C. § 1097(a). The defendants
operated a vocational school and failed to refund to the United

States Departnent of Education federal student financial aid

" Pursuant to 5THOR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.
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funds that becane refundabl e when certain students w thdrew from
t he school

The defendants contend that the evidence was insufficient to
convict them Because they failed to renew their notions for
acquittal at the close of all the evidence, we reviewthe
evidence only to determ ne whether there was “a manifest

m scarriage of justice.” United States v. G een, 293 F.3d 886,

895 (5th Gr. 2002) (citation omtted). W reviewthe direct and
circunstantial evidence in the |ight nost favorable to the
verdi ct, and we accept all reasonable inferences and credibility

choices in favor of the verdict. United States v. Giffin, 324

F.3d 330, 356 (5th Gr. 2003) (citation omtted). For there to
be a mani fest mscarriage of justice, “the record nust be devoid
of evidence of guilt or the evidence nust be so tenuous that a

conviction is shocking.” United States v. Avants, 367 F.3d 433,

449 (5th Gir. 2004).

There was anple direct and circunstantial evidence that (1)
the defendants acted in | eadership positions at the school; (2)
the shared with each other joint responsibilities and authority
over financial matters, financial aid, and attendance records,;
(3) the school enployed procedures for keeping the defendants
tinmely informed of refunds due; (4) the defendants mai ntai ned an
overal |l awareness of what was happening at the small school; (5)
school records adequately reflected the students’ attendance and

financial aid bal ances; (6) the defendants retai ned federal funds
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for their personal use; and (7) the defendants declined to nake
refunds on behal f of each student nanmed in the indictnent. Based
on this evidence, the jury reasonably could have inferred that
the defendants participated in a conspiracy, that they were aware
of the need to refund noney on behal f each student naned in the
indictnment, and that they willfully and intentionally failed to

pay refunds. See Giffin, 324 F.3d at 356-58. A guilty verdict

on all counts based on the foregoing evidence is not a nanifest
m scarriage of justice.

The defendants contend that the district court abused its
discretion by failing to instruct the jury that
“mal adm ni stration of a business” was not a violation of 20
US C 8 1097(a). The court accurately and adequately instructed
the jury that the Governnment was required to prove that the
defendants’ failure to nake refunds was willful and intentional,
and the court’s instruction permtted the jury to consider the
defendants’ theory that their failure to pay refunds was nerely

the result of poor finances and m stakes. See Bates v. United

States, 522 U. S. 23, 25, 29-31 (1997). The district court did
not abuse its discretion by declining to make the requested
i nstruction.

The defendants contend that their sentences nust be vacated
because the district court applied the federal sentencing
guidelines as if they were mandatory, in violation of United

States v. Booker, 125 S. C. 738 (2005). This issue is reviewd
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only for plain error because it was not raised in the district

court. See United States v. Val enzuel a- Quevedo, 407 F.3d 728,

732 (5th Cr. 2005). The application of mandatory gui delines was
an error that was “plain.” See id. at 733. However, the
defendants failed to show that the error affected their
substantial rights because they pointed to nothing in the record
to suggest that the district court would have inposed | esser

sent ences under Booker’'s advisory guidelines schene. See id. at

733; United States v. Mares, 402 F.3d 511, 521-22 (5th Cr

2005), petition for cert. filed (U S. Mar. 31, 2005) (No. 04-

9517); see also United States v. Martinez-lLugo, _ F.3d__, No.

04- 40478, 2005 W. 1331282, *2 (5th Cr. June 7, 2005) (citing
Mares and rejecting an assertion that application of mandatory
guidelines is “structural error”). Accordingly, they fail to

show “plain error.” See Val enzuel a- Quevedo, 407 F.3d at 732-33.

The def endants’ convictions and sentences are

AFFI RVED.



